
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health,  
Councillor Carl Maynard 
 
THURSDAY, 25 APRIL 2024 AT 10.00 AM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Member on 6 March 2024  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Disclosure of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3.   Urgent items   

Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda. 

 
4.   Household Support Fund 2024  (Pages 7 - 10) 

Report by the Director of Public Health. 
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 17 April 2024 
 
Contact Belinda Trunfull, 01273 335230,  
 
Email: Belinda.Trunfull@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, Councillor Carl 
Maynard, on 6 March 2024 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

41. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD MEMBER ON 7 FEBRUARY 2024  

 

41.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7 
February 2024. 

 

42. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

42.1 There were none. 

 

43. URGENT ITEMS  

 

43.1 There were none. 

 

44. REPORTS  

 

44.1 A copy of the reports referred to below are included in the minute book. 

 

45. RE-PROCUREMENT OF SPECIALIST SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICES  

 

45.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
regarding the proposed actions to secure the ongoing provision of the mandated Specialist 
Sexual Health Services. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

45.2 It was noted that following the publication of the report, references to Regulation 72 of 
the Public Contract Regulations 2015 in recommendation (1) and section 2.4 of the report are to 
be removed. 

DECISIONS  

45.3 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 

1) agree to extend the existing contract with the current provider for six months (1 April 2024 to 
30 September 2024); and 

2) agree the proposed approach as set out at paragraphs 2.5 to 2.9 of the report to contract with 
a new service provider, from 1 October 2024. 

REASONS 

45.4 Public Health are mandated to provide Specialist Sexual Health Services to the 
residents of East Sussex. The existing contract is due to end on 31 March 2024 but, following 
an unsuccessful re-tendering process, a new service provider has not yet been identified. In 
order to maintain service provision, the existing contract needs to be extended with the current 
service provider for a period of six months. 

45.5 After consideration of the options available, it is proposed that the most effective way of 
securing ongoing provision from 1 October 2024 is through a structured negotiation with a new 
NHS provider. 

 

46. FUTURE OFFER FOLLOWING THE SUPPORT WITH CONFIDENCE CONSULTATION  

 

46.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health 
regarding the Support with Confidence (SWC) consultation findings and future offer. 

DECISIONS 

46.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 

1) Note the key responses/themes from the public consultation on the proposal to close the 
SWC scheme as listed at paragraph 2.5 of the report; 

2) Note the key impacts and action plan in the equality impact assessment set out at Appendix 3 
of the report; 

3) Approve the proposals for supporting personal assistants, businesses and residents following 
the SWC scheme closure set out at Appendix 4 of the report; and 

4) Delegate authority to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health to take any and all 
necessary actions to give effect to the implementation of the proposed new ways of working. 

REASONS 

46.3 The East Sussex SWC scheme was much valued by personal assistants (PAs), 
businesses, staff, residents and communities. It helped PAs and businesses promote their 
services and gave adults who need care and support, and their families and carers, assurance 
and confidence when choosing services. 

46.4 The option to continue running the SWC scheme is no longer available as the brand has 
been withdrawn. The current information relating to employment status and registration, and the 
legal risks associated with this, means that the Council will not be developing a replacement 
accreditation scheme. The Council will however continue to support residents to make informed 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

choices about their care and support arrangements and to support PAs and businesses to 
develop their skills and promote their services in a different way. 

46.5 Adult Social Care and Health will work with PAs, businesses and adults with care and 
support needs to develop information and guidance to support a new way of working and will 
continue to communicate with those affected by the change during the transition and beyond. 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

Report to: Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health 

Date of meeting: 25 April 2024 

By: Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

Title: Household Support Fund 2024 

Purpose: To note the proposed use of the Household Support Fund (“the 
Fund’’) for 1 April 2024 – 30 September 2024 and agree the 
development of a scheme to distribute grant funding as set out in 
this report 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to: 

1. Approve the proposed plan for the use of the Fund in East Sussex in 2024 as set out 
in this report; and  

2. Delegate to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health authority to implement the 
scheme including detailed allocation decisions of the final allocation of the delivery 
partner element (£1,544,284). 

 

1 Background 

1.1 On 6 March 2024 in the Spring Budget the Chancellor announced that the Fund would be 
extended for a further six months, from 1 April 2024 to 30 September 2024, with a further £421m of 
grant funding being made available. Full details including a launch letter, Guidance, Grant 
Determination and Delivery Plan and Reporting requirements were received on 26 March 2024.  

1.2 East Sussex County Council (ESCC) has been allocated £3,896,783.88 for the six-month 
extension period. Payments will be made in two instalments in arrears after the submission of a 
Delivery Plan and an interim Management Information (MI) return and the final MI return at the end 
of grant period to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).    

1.3 Key parts of the 2024 Fund guidance include:  

 Local authorities should use the Fund to meet immediate needs and help those who are 
struggling to afford household essentials including energy and water bills, food, and 
wider essentials. Local authorities can also use funding to support households with 
housing costs where existing housing support does not meet this need, and to 
supplement support with signposting and advice. 

 The Fund is intended to cover a wide range of low-income households in need, including 
families with children of all ages, pensioners, unpaid carers, care leavers and disabled 
people, larger families, single-person households, and those struggling with one-off 
financial shocks or unforeseen events. 

 There is an emphasis on providing support to households that are in the most need – 
particularly those who may not be eligible for the other support that the government has 
recently made available.  It is worth noting that the apparent cessation of the Cost-of-
Living payments may increase need/demand for the Fund across groups who would have 
been eligible for those payments (this includes those on income related benefits, disabled 
claimants and pensioners).  

 Local authorities have the flexibility to identify which vulnerable households are in most 
need of support and apply discretion when identifying eligibility. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



  

 

 

 Local authorities must have a clear rationale or documented policy/framework outlining 
the approach, including how eligibility will be defined and how households access the 
Fund.  Local authorities are expected to review any existing approach and to have a 
strong rationale for targeting so that funding is available to the households who most 
need it. 

 The guidance also indicates that at least part of the spending should be application 
based, i.e. that residents should have the opportunity to request support. The definition is 
flexible, and applications can be made directly via the local authority or via third parties.  
 

2 Supporting information. 

2.1 In previous years the Council has distributed the Fund through a variety of partners, 
including District and Borough Councils (D&B councils) and the Voluntary, Community and Social 
Enterprise (VCSE) sector, and all partners have been able to use all their allocated amounts to 
reach eligible beneficiaries.  This approach is in line with the updated Fund guidance.  Therefore, 
the Council is proposing to continue to allocate Fund monies in the following ways: 

 Food vouchers (Huggg vouchers) for 2 to 19-year-olds eligible for Free School Meals, to 
cover the school holiday periods. 

 The Council’s Children’s Services teams that provide support to vulnerable families and 
children, administering funding directly to these teams to meet identified needs. 

 Allocations to VCSEs to target individuals, including pensioners, and disabled people at 
risk of food and fuel poverty. 

 Allocations to each of the five D&B councils to administer funding to households, 
including pensioners, who are known to be eligible and in need.  

 Allocation to Food Banks and Food Partnerships to distribute to those in need. 

2.2  The systems already set up through previous rounds of the Fund to distribute the funding 
are working well and it is proposed to continue to use these systems.  

2.3 Over the recent years the cost-of-living pressures have grown and are now affecting people 
and families previously unaffected, this has meant that many Fund partners are seeing an increase 
in the people requesting or requiring support. 

2.4 The Fund scheme has a completed Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) which helps 
ensure people with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are not disadvantaged and 
that all groups can access the Fund if they meet eligibility requirements.   

 
3.  Proposal 
 
3.1 Distributing the Council’s share of the Fund to the same partners as previously (and as set 
out in paragraph 2.1 of this report) will ensure continuity in the allocation of support to the full range 
of beneficiary groups and will facilitate swift and effective administration of the Fund.   

3.2  The proposal this year is to build on previous successful delivery of the Fund and to increase 
the Hugg vouchers to families during the summer holidays from £50 to £60.  
 
3.3 This increase in the value of Huggg vouchers over the summer holidays brings this support 
to families eligible for Free School Meals during this period more in line with other school holidays 
and matches the offers that some other local authorities provide during the summer.  This support 
goes directly to families in need, with no administration costs.     
 
3.4 In order to fund the proposed increase in value of Hugg vouchers during the summer holiday 
period, a reduction in the Fund allocation to other delivery partners will be necessary. These 

Page 8



  

 

 

delivery partners have all been able to reach eligible beneficiaries in previous years, and there is 
significant local and national evidence of demand amongst all beneficiary groups. How the required 
reduction in the allocation to other delivery partners will be distributed will be subject to further 
consultation and engagement with those partners. 
 
3.5 In order to ensure the remainder of the Fund is allocated after careful consideration of the 
updated guidance, resident need and in consultation with delivery partners, it is recommended that 
the authority to determine the final allocation of the delivery partner element of the Fund 
(£1,544,284) is delegated to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health.   
 

Allocations Table - (1 April 2024 – 30 September 2024) 
 

Partner  Amount (£) Note 

Free School Meal eligible pupils  
Huggg food vouchers 

£2,152,500 

 

 Easter holiday - £30 

 May half-term - £15 

 Summer holiday - £60 

Children's Services Teams £200,000 Families in need  

Delivery partners: 

 D & B councils 

 VCSE sector 

 Food Banks and Food Partnerships 

£1,544,284 

 

Detailed breakdown to be 
decided with further 
consideration of updated 
guidance  

Total £3,896,784 
 

 

4. Risks 

4.1 The main risk with this scheme is the ability of the Council to distribute its full Fund allocation 
in line with the DWP Guidance, especially given the shorter timescale for this extension. This risk is 
mitigated by using the existing schemes and partners to administer the funding.  

4.2 Any other risks identified will be picked up through the Council’s Household Support Fund 
Steering Group who oversee the detailed plan for implementation and monitor the new extension 
period. 

4.3 As a national scheme there is increased scrutiny over the Council’s decisions on how this 
round of the Fund will be spent has been allocated. To mitigate this risk, we will develop a 
communications plan that sets out the key messages and the timing of these messages, in line with 
Fund communication guidelines which are part of the guidance. 

4.4 Utilising VCSE and other delivery partners to implement the scheme adds considerable 
value in terms of local community knowledge and an ability to engage with residents who may not 
be in contact with statutory services.  
 
4.5 The proposed re-allocation of funds to increase the value of the summer holiday food 
vouchers presents a risk that the residual balance distributed through the VCSEs, D&B councils and 
Food Partnerships/Banks will be insufficient to meet needs. This risk will be mitigated by reviewing 
the exact allocations those partners receive in line with updated guidance documents and the 
priorities within them and in consultation with delivery partners.    
 

Page 9



  

 

 

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

5.1 The announcement of an extension to the Fund provides an opportunity to support 
households with children, households with pensioners, households with a disabled person and other 
vulnerable households within East Sussex who are experiencing financial challenges and will be 
welcomed by partners.  

5.2 The Lead Member is recommended to: 

1. approve the proposed plan for the use of the Fund in East Sussex in 2024 as set out in this 
report; and  

2. Delegate to the Director of Adult Social Care and Health authority to implement the scheme 
including detailed allocation decisions of the final allocation of the delivery partner element 
(£1,544,284). 

 

 

 

MARK STAINTON 

Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

Contact Officer: Mark Hendriks 

Tel. No. 07701 394501  

Email: mark.hendriks@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

All 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

None 

Page 10

mailto:mark.hendriks@eastsussex.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Member on 6 March 2024
	4 Household Support Fund 2024

